
From: Lewandowski, Paige M (DEC)
To: Ojserkis, Max
Cc: LoFrisco, Dan; Suddeth, Trent; Chen, Kitty; Von Ohlsen, Bonnie; Romero Medina, Glennys A (DEC); Werkmeister, Catherine; Lewandowski, Paige

M (DEC); dec.sm.R3.BEH
Subject: RE: Wetland Permitting - Orangeburg, Rockland County
Date: Thursday, April 3, 2025 4:57:44 PM
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Hello,
 
I have reviewed the consultant jurisdictional determination submission for the 2000 Corporate Drive
Redevelopment Project in the Town of Orangetown, Rockland County, NY. Wetlands 1 and 2 from the
wetland delineation report prepared by Kimley-Horn and Associates, Inc. are regulated by NYS DEC pursuant
to Article 24 of the Environmental Conservation Law (ECL). Basins 1 and 2 are not regulated by NYS DEC pursuant to
Article 24 of the ECL.
 
The classification of Wetland 1 as Class 1 is accurate as it is contiguous to fresh surface waters having a
classification of A.  The classification of Wetland 2 as Class 2 is accurate as it meets the criteria of being within an
urban area defined by the United States Census Bureau. I have summarized my findings in the table below:
 

Tax ID #: Resource Jurisdictional Determination Classification

73.15-1-19

Basin 1 Not regulated by NYS DEC
pursuant to Article 24 of the
ECL.

n/a

Basin 2 Not regulated by NYS DEC
pursuant to Article 24 of the
ECL.

n/a

Wetland 1 Regulated by NYS DEC
pursuant to Article 24 of the
ECL.

Class 1 - contiguous to
fresh surface waters having
a classification of A

Wetland 2 Regulated by NYS DEC
pursuant to Article 24 of the
ECL.

Class 2 - urban area defined
by the United States
Census Bureau

 
This determination is valid for five years, please keep a copy of this email for your records.
 
Thank you,
 
Paige Lewandowski (she/her/hers)
Biologist 1
 
New York State Department of Environmental Conservation
Division of Fish and Wildlife | Bureau of Ecosystem Health
21 South Putt Corners Road, New Paltz, NY 12561
P: (845) 256-3113 | paige.lewandowski@dec.ny.gov
dec.ny.gov | @NYSDEC on Social Media | Podcast
 

From: Lewandowski, Paige M (DEC) 
Sent: Thursday, March 20, 2025 4:44 PM
To: Ojserkis, Max <Max.Ojserkis@kimley-horn.com>
Cc: LoFrisco, Dan <Dan.LoFrisco@kimley-horn.com>; Suddeth, Trent <Trent.Suddeth@kimley-horn.com>; Chen, Kitty
<Kitty.Chen@kimley-horn.com>; Von Ohlsen, Bonnie <Bonnie.VonOhlsen@kimley-horn.com>; Romero Medina, Glennys A
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(DEC) <Glennys.Romeromedina@dec.ny.gov>; Werkmeister, Catherine <C.Werkmeister@kimley-horn.com>
Subject: RE: Wetland Permitting - Orangeburg, Rockland County

 
Thank you for the additional information. I have reached out for guidance on jurisdiction of the wetlands onsite
and will be in touch once a determination is reached.
 
Best,
Paige
 
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
 
 

From: Ojserkis, Max <Max.Ojserkis@kimley-horn.com> 
Sent: Thursday, March 20, 2025 4:30 PM
To: Lewandowski, Paige M (DEC) <Paige.Lewandowski@dec.ny.gov>
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

 
ATTENTION: This email came from an external source. Do not open attachments or click on links from unknown senders or unexpected

emails.

 
Hi Paige,
 
Received.  Thank you for the timely response!
 
Please let me know if you have questions or thoughts on the information previously provided on the basin.
 
Thanks again,
 
Max Ojserkis, PWS
Kimley-Horn | 50 S. 16th Street, Suite 3300, Philadelphia, PA 19102
Direct: 267 807 3280

 
Celebrating 17 years as one of FORTUNE’s 100 Best Companies to Work For

 
From: Lewandowski, Paige M (DEC) <Paige.Lewandowski@dec.ny.gov> 
Sent: Thursday, March 20, 2025 2:34 PM
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

 
Hi Max,
 
The infiltration testing for the Databank Orangeburg Phase 2, as outlined in correspondence from Max Ojserkis
dated 3/17/2025 and refenced in the Infiltration Testing Exhibit site plans dated 3/10/2025, is exempt from
freshwater wetland permitting under Item 5 of CRR-NY Part 663.4 Regulatory procedures; Conducting
educational and scientific research activities where no significant impairment of the wetland or its benefits is
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involved.
 
You may proceed with the selective tree removal and infiltration testing as described. Please note if there are
changes to site plans, further review will be required.
 
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
Sent: Wednesday, March 19, 2025 4:06 PM
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
Importance: High

 
ATTENTION: This email came from an external source. Do not open attachments or click on links from unknown senders or unexpected

emails.

 
Hi Paige,
 
Following up on this request for confirmation that the infiltration testing and associated selective tree cutting and wood chip
access path are exempt.
 
The contractor wants to mobilize next Monday and the winter tree clearing window (for bats) is quickly closing (3/31).  Can
you please let us know your thoughts on this?
 
Thank you,
 
Max Ojserkis, PWS
Kimley-Horn | 50 S. 16th Street, Suite 3300, Philadelphia, PA 19102
Direct: 267 807 3280

 
Celebrating 17 years as one of FORTUNE’s 100 Best Companies to Work For

 
From: Ojserkis, Max 
Sent: Monday, March 17, 2025 1:25 PM
To: 'Lewandowski, Paige M (DEC)' <Paige.Lewandowski@dec.ny.gov>
Cc: LoFrisco, Dan <Dan.LoFrisco@kimley-horn.com>; Suddeth, Trent <Trent.Suddeth@kimley-horn.com>; Chen, Kitty
<Kitty.Chen@kimley-horn.com>; Von Ohlsen, Bonnie <Bonnie.VonOhlsen@kimley-horn.com>; 'Romero Medina, Glennys A
(DEC)' <Glennys.Romeromedina@dec.ny.gov>; Werkmeister, Catherine <C.Werkmeister@kimley-horn.com>
Subject: RE: Wetland Permitting - Orangeburg, Rockland County

 
Hi Paige,
 
Please see attached exhibit showing the proposed infiltration testing on the Databank Orangeburg site. The testing will involve
the creation of a temporary access path (hatched on the attached plan) using wood chips that passes through the adjacent
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area of Wetland 2. The access path as shown will not require any tree cutting; if the path were to be moved outside of the
adjacent area, some trees would have to be cut. For the actual infiltration testing itself, some trees will have to be removed in
the area of the proposed basin (shown in orange on the second sheet of the PDF). These trees will be cut by hand. The testing
will consist of test pits (approximately 2’ x 4’) and boring holes, all of which will be restored to pre-existing conditions once
testing is complete. The equipment used will be limited to a skid-steer and/or a mini excavator. Based on the minimal tree
cutting, the natural material used for the access path, and the small machinery used for testing, this will not impact the
function of the wetland or the adjacent area. Can you confirm that both the selective tree cutting and the infiltration testing
are exempt activities under the NYSDEC Freshwater Wetland Regulations? As previously mentioned, this work needs to
occur during a specific window in the spring to accurately characterize groundwater levels and infiltration capacity of this
area. If you have further questions, please let me know and I will respond as soon as possible to keep this moving forward.
 
We’ve also collected some additional information on Basin 2. It was installed by the previous property owner, Verizon, and
was utilized for stormwater runoff reduction and water quality treatment. The property was vacant for several years, during
which time the basin became overgrown. Under the Phase 1 proposed work, it will not be used for stormwater runoff water
quality treatment as the new site design directs all impervious stormwater runoff to newly installed stormwater
infrastructure. It does still function for stormwater runoff reduction as it collects nearby pervious runoff via sheet flow and
controls the rate of release. During the final stage of Phase I construction (currently in progress), the contractor will perform
maintenance and clear the overgrown portions to ensure it is functioning as designed. Based on this information, are you able
to confirm that this basin would not be considered a regulated wetland? Once we have clarity here, we can finalize the
boundary validation plan and our revised permit application.
 
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
Sent: Monday, March 3, 2025 4:29 PM
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
 
Please see attached updated delineation report and a wetland boundary validation plan.  I can send hard copies of the plan
once you give your blessing.
 
Looking forward to our call tomorrow.
 
Thanks,
 
Max Ojserkis, PWS
Kimley-Horn | 50 S. 16th Street, Suite 3300, Philadelphia, PA 19102
Office: 267 807 3280 | Mobile: 609 432 4565 | www.kimley-horn.com

 
Celebrating 17 years as one of FORTUNE’s 100 Best Companies to Work For

 
From: Lewandowski, Paige M (DEC) <Paige.Lewandowski@dec.ny.gov> 
Sent: Thursday, February 27, 2025 4:13 PM
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

 
Attached is our most updated validation block. We will be making changes in the future to remove the Freshwater
Wetland ID section. For now, use this one and fill the ID section with “not applicable” or N/A. I am going to discuss
this project with my colleagues tomorrow and then I can provide more information. I have availability on Tuesday
at 3 or 4pm.
 
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
Sent: Thursday, February 27, 2025 1:02 PM
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
 
Just following up on meeting request for next week.  Please let me know what works.
 
Additionally, for the wetland boundary validation plan, are the attached instructions and included validation block still valid?
 
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
Sent: Monday, February 24, 2025 8:37 PM
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
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Thanks for your time on site today.  To summarize:
NYSDEC is in agreement with the delineated resource boundaries.
KH will revise and resubmit the wetland delineation report to include classification of wetlands based on Jan 15, 2025
NYSDEC SOP.
KH will prepare a wetland boundary validation plan including NYSDEC title block for signature.  To be provided via
email for preliminary review and hard copy once final.

 
A few items we discussed on site that we’d like to circle back to:

Is anything needed beyond the above items for the application to be deemed complete?
Is there a standard timeframe for application review once deemed complete?  If not, do you have a ballpark for
when we might receive our first round of technical comments?

Assuming the project is not able to further avoid and minimize impacts to the wetlands on site, what type and ratio of
mitigation would be required, if any?

Are mitigation bank credits an option and do you know if there is a bank that services this area?
When is the applicant required to detail proposed mitigation strategy and execute purchase agreements if
credits are the chosen option… as part of the permit application, after the permit is reviewed, or after it is fully
issued?

As I mentioned, there is infiltration testing that needs to occur between mid-March and mid-May within the 100’
adjacent area.  Based on our conversation and a review of the NYSDEC website, selective tree cutting (necessary for
drill rig access) would be exempt.  But it seems the actual sampling would be a minor activity, requiring a permit. 

What is the best way to obtain approval for this activity given the time sensitive nature of it?  Should it be added
to our current application (which is a major project) or submitted as a separate minor application?  It is noted
that the applicant for this may be different than the applicant for the larger site development.

 
I will schedule a follow up call for early next week to discuss these items.  Please let me know if any of the following times
work for you and your supervisor:

Monday 11-12 (and most of us earlier in the morning too)
Tuesday 10-11:30, 3 and 4 (not 3:30)

 
We appreciate your attention to this project and helping us get the necessary clarifications to move this application forward
as expeditiously as possible.
 
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
Sent: Thursday, February 20, 2025 11:31 AM
To: Ojserkis, Max <Max.Ojserkis@kimley-horn.com>; Werkmeister, Catherine <C.Werkmeister@kimley-horn.com>
Cc: LoFrisco, Dan <Dan.LoFrisco@kimley-horn.com>; Suddeth, Trent <Trent.Suddeth@kimley-horn.com>; Chen, Kitty
<Kitty.Chen@kimley-horn.com>; Von Ohlsen, Bonnie <Bonnie.VonOhlsen@kimley-horn.com>; Romero Medina, Glennys A
(DEC) <Glennys.Romeromedina@dec.ny.gov>
Subject: RE: Wetland Permitting - Orangeburg, Rockland County

 
Hi Max,
 
Yes Monday 2/24 works for me, the earliest I’d be able to meet would be 10am, and am open the rest of the day.
 
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
Sent: Thursday, February 20, 2025 11:26 AM
To: Lewandowski, Paige M (DEC) <Paige.Lewandowski@dec.ny.gov>; Werkmeister, Catherine <C.Werkmeister@kimley-
horn.com>
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
 
Please let me know if Monday 2/24 works for you for the site visit.
 
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
Sent: Tuesday, February 18, 2025 8:22 AM
To: 'Lewandowski, Paige M (DEC)' <Paige.Lewandowski@dec.ny.gov>; Werkmeister, Catherine <C.Werkmeister@kimley-
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
 
I’ll jump in here. Apologies if our last email came off as accusatory. I think our frustration has to do with the way the new rules
are being implemented and the lack of guidance (as far as I’ve seen) regarding applications that were submitted before the
changes.  But we realize this is no fault of yours.  And the holidays right after our submittal didn’t help either.  I’m glad the
application is in your hands and is moving forward.  This will likely become a critical path item for the project, so anything you
can do to expedite review would be greatly appreciated.
 
We would like to use the consultant route.  I can be available for a site visit on 2/24 (10am or later) and will bring a GPS unit
and iPad loaded with delineation boundaries.  Let me know if that works and I will send a meeting invite with additional
details.
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Some people who received this message don't often get email from paige.lewandowski@dec.ny.gov. Learn why this is important

Please let us know if you require anything else at this time.
 
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
Sent: Friday, February 14, 2025 2:49 PM
To: Werkmeister, Catherine <C.Werkmeister@kimley-horn.com>; Ojserkis, Max <Max.Ojserkis@kimley-horn.com>
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

 

I am not saying we are at square one – I wanted to ensure the parcel determination portion of the application was
started as this can take up to 90 days if submitted through the jurisdictional determination form on the DEC
website. The consultant option for JD guidelines were finalized and posted to our website this week – I was
unable to propose this option until those guidelines were made available. Also, if a JD request was submitted
through the website and you are opting for the consultant route, I can let the team handling those requests know
that regional staff are taking over the determination for this particular property.  
 
Please note the following bullet from the Consultant Option:

Proposed classification of each Article 24 regulated wetland(s) located on the parcel(s) based on the most

recent version of DEC’s “Standard Operating Procedures (SOP) for Remote Jurisdictional Determinations

and Classification of Freshwater Wetlands Pursuant to 6 NYCRR Part 664, Freshwater Wetlands Jurisdiction

and Classification.” Off-site wetlands, where appropriate, must be considered when proposing

classifications.
 

The SOP was not posted on our website until after January 1st, therefore the classifications for wetlands in the
report from December 2024 were not determined using the SOP (linked here: Freshwater Wetland Jurisdictional
Determination, under “Types of Jurisdiction Determinations”). Additionally, the report notes one of the wetlands
as “Class 2 or 3.” Classification must be specific, and the criteria used to make the determination shall be noted
in the report.
 
I am working to provide technical comments as soon as possible, I do not have an estimated timeline. A site visit
to validate wetland boundaries should also be set up. My next availability is 2/24 or 2/27. Please note validations
cannot be completed if there is substantial snow cover. I have the first two weeks of March open as well. A
shapefile can be sent once the wetland boundary is validated.
 
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
 
 

From: Werkmeister, Catherine <C.Werkmeister@kimley-horn.com> 
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